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The purpose of this amendment is to provide answers to questions 44 through 59.  The attached Request for Proposal (RFP) has been updated to reflect the following changes:

	
	LIST OF CHANGES 

	1
	Update Contract Clause B.3, Estimated Cost And Award Fee to reflect LOE estimated cost and maximum award fee value

	2
	Update Statement of Work to reflect Parent/Child SOW paragraph corrections

	3
	Update Statement of Work paragraph 1.1 Management Processes, Planning, And Reviews

	4
	Delete Statement of Work paragraph 3.4.3 Coordination Of External Users Of The MCC  

	5
	Update Contract Clause F.3, Option To Extend The Term Of The Contract 

	6
	Update Contract Clause  F.7  Level-Of-Effort (Cost) to reflect LOE hours   

	7
	Update Contract Clause G.1, NFS Clause 1852.242-71 Travel Outside of the United States (DEC 1988) - change the notice to the CO from 30 to 7 days.

	8
	Delete Contract Clause H.1, Listing Of Clauses Incorporated By Reference,  NFS Clause 1852.235-73  Final Scientific and Technical Reports (DEC 2006) Alternate I  (FEB 2003), Alternate II (DEC 2005), Alternate III (JAN 2005)

	9
	Update Contract Clause H.6 JSC 52.219-90  Small Business Subcontracting Goals  (OCT 2006) to reflect small business goals

	10
	Update Contract Attachment J-1 LOE/IDIQ/CF Cross Reference To Sow Requirements clarifying that the matrix is a guideline only

	11
	Update Contract Attachment J-1 matrix to reflect  FCOD's update and Parent/Child SOW paragraph corrections

	12
	Update Contract Attachment J-7, Data Requirement Description to add NPR 2810.1 and SATERN for training to DRD 1.8-a, IMOC Security Management Plan.

	13
	Update Contract Provision  L-16, Proposal Instructions paragraph D.

	14
	Update Contract Provision  L-16, Proposal Instructions Exhibit II LOE Template to (a) include new SLC (Engineering Staff - Senior Technical Authority), (b) removed LOE hours from the Option year, and (c) adjusted hours for the base years of the contract

	15
	Update Contract Provision  L-16, Proposal Instructions Exhibit III SLCs to include the new SLC Engineering Staff – Senior Technical Authority


	 RID # Rec/Ans
	QUESTION/ANSWER

	44 Q


	On SPOC, USA has been in discussions with NASA (Procurement, Security, and the COTR) since contract inception in attempt to define, interpret and clarify security requirements related to this NPR. A number of requirements in the NPR are significant cost drivers, particularly the Chapter 4 and 5 requirements, and depending on interpretation cost estimates vary widely. One of the more significant areas involves Chapter 5 which addresses Classified National Security and Sensitive but Unclassified (SBU) Information Management. From coordination with the NASA SPOC TMR for Security, our understanding of the “requirements” as identified concerning protection and marking of SBU in this section cannot be implemented.  USA needs additional NASA implementation direction in order to provide a viable cost estimate.  

	44 A

	The data owner is MOD management (e.g. MOD Dir, MOD Division Chief).  MOD management will set-up guidelines when SBU can be shared.  The management will appoint point-of-contact personnel.  The rights to view data can be granted by group relationship.  If the employee is working on a project, the employee is granted access to the SBU data to do the work related function.  MOD management will not have to formally approve each of these accesses.  The granting of access to SBU data happens after employee has been cleared by NASA OSPP policies and procedures.  The employee can’t be verbally granted SBU access if the data is not related to their work function.  Some data can be protected in the IT resources by access control (e.g. password and ID).  Other times, data must be stored encrypted.  For example, export control data would be one area that requires higher security for data storage. 

The implementation of the IT Security requirements related to SBU should not be “significant cost drivers” because the contractor will be using MOD’s processes.   The JSC CIO will be available to discuss implementation upon request.  The Security Plan DRD should reference NPR 2810.1A for the IT Security requirements and SATERN Training classes shall be used to satisfy the IT Security training requirements.  This DRD in updated in amendment 3.

Based on these clarifications, please propose your best estimate along with assumptions of the cost in your BOE for implementation beginning at the start of the contract.

	45 Q


	USA has priced SPOC with an assumption of the end of Shuttle Operations June 30, 2010 assuming an April 8, 2010 last flight. This assumption is documented in H.47 of SPOC. In the event that the Last flight does not slip such that resources are maintained on SPOC in support of Shuttle, a potential gap could emerge from July 1, 2010 until those resources will be required on IMOC starting October 1, 2010.  

	45 A 


	ISS support will continue on SPOC to the end of FY10, making transition of ISS on October 1, 2010 is appropriate.  Personnel supporting Constellation will already be charging to the appropriate charge codes.  As Shuttle work drops off, NASA anticipates there will be a change in the mix of personnel charging on Constellation, but the charges must be within the allocated budget for that year.  The “gap” issue will be a management challenge and risk in FY10, but there are several unknowns, which may minimize the impact such as manifest slips, clarification of closeout/transition budget, phasing of IMOC support so that it builds up during the year.

	46 Q


	The IMOC RFP has a requirement for an Excel Pricing Model (EPM), although no specific format was provided. USA has previously provided examples of EPMs we have prepared for past proposals but have not heard any feedback as to NASA preference. We’d like to firm up this requirement. 


	46 A


	Section L-16 Page L-18 indicates that the contractor and subcontractors are “required to submit detailed, fully supported cost proposals in hardcopy, and each shall also submit an EPM file (in Microsoft Excel 2002 version or earlier) at the total contract level utilizing their pricing model format (such as “Form A’s, Form 1’s”).  Excel workbooks and templates shall contain formulas that lend themselves to evaluation by the government.”  Form A’s were provided in the SPOC proposal.  NASA is expecting the same (Form A) or a similar format, with an emphasis on formulas being included in the worksheet.  NASA has forwarded an example of a pricing model that USA used during the SPOC proposal development, which has proven to be very effective in terms of connectivity within the model.  

	47 Q


	IMOC RFP Section L instructions reference providing Organization or Departmental labor skill mix mapping to SLCs (page L-30). USA intends to provide a NASA organizational mapping (i.e., DA, DM, DO, DS, DX), not departmental and would like to confirm there is no expectation of seeing departmental data.   Also, the RFP requests pricing by contract year, and USA would like to confirm there is no expectation of monthly pricing data. 

	47 A


	NASA will be evaluating the proposal using SLC.  The SLC should be mapped to the departmental or organizational structure on the NASA side that would facilitate the review of the direct labor rates to the contractor’s records.  That is, if the labor rates can be verified using organizational mapping and not departmental mapping, then NASA requires the organizational mapping.  Also, although NASA requires the proposal by contract year, the proposal will be developed on a monthly basis, and the details provided to the DCAA auditors upon request for their review.

	48 Q


	Can we assume both on-site and off-site IMOC personnel may use SPOC equipment (through SPOC end) on a "rent-free, non-interference" basis?  And if so, should we develop a sharing methodology for pricing purposes? 

	48 A


	All Nonreimbursable / Non Interference agreements are only good for the baseline period of performance under the SPOC, which is through September 30. 2010.  IMOC will need to assume accountability starting in FY11 specifically the ISS Ops from SPOC to IMOC.  USA's proposal needs to account for this transition.  Therefore, there is no need for a sharing methodology.

	49 Q


	Unlike SPOC, IMOC does not contain a provision in which the government supplies equipment (PCs, Printers, etc.); consequently, we will be responsible for supplying necessary equipment and related services to USA employees, including those located on-site.  Is there an option for JSC to continue to provide property and services through ODIN for on-site personnel?   If not, will USA be allowed to purchase such through ODIN?  If neither of the first two options is available we will assume that USA will provide equipment and services. 

	49 A
	On-site personnel will use standard ODIN equipment, provided by NASA.  The sustaining of any specialty CF equipment beyond September 30, 2010 should be included in the proposal. 

	50 Q


	The IMOC RFP contains a DRD for an IMOC Security Management Plan which includes a requirement for an IT Security program.  Under SPOC, IT Security was addressed as a separate Plan (DRD).  Is there an expectation we develop a separate IT Security Plan for IMOC? 

	50 A
	IMOC will not require a separate IT Security Plan deliverable.

	51 Q


	We have identified some work associated with SOW paragraphs identified as LOE content that is lower in priority and may be deferred to FY'11.  Consequently, the BOEs for these SOW paragraphs will have zero hours.  Is there an expectation that we provide an estimate for these hours? 

	51 A

	As a clarification to the Section L instructions, NASA anticipates receipt of a BOE at the SLC level mapped to the SOW paragraphs for  the workforce required for the CF-related work.  NASA anticipates seeing the BOE for the rates of the LOE work at the SLC level, but mapping of this work to the SOW requirements is not required.  However, if this has already been done, NASA will not ask the contractor to expend additional effort to scrub this information from the proposal.  The BOE for the LOE hours has been provided as Exhibit II of Section L.   NASA updated section 1.1 to include personnel management.    

	52 Q


	We expect to propose and perform the full amount of LOE hours provided in the RFP (531K hours).  If for reasons beyond our control we can not deliver all LOE hours in FY'09 and FY'10, will the delta hours be pushed to FY'11?  Conversely, if we deliver the full extent of LOE hours in FY'09 and FY'10 and have defined work remaining, is there a provision to add hours via IDIQ (SOW Section 2.5)? 

	52 A


	NASA expects most of the LOE hours to be expended in the first 2 years, but yes, NASA will use remaining LOE hours if available.  The maximum of 110% band in clause F.7 is the cap for LOE hours.  Once the hours are expended, there will be no provision to add more hours.  And conversely, NASA will use the general provision in the contract for IDIQ to accomplish SOW requirements via IDIQ task orders as needed.  Contract Clause F.7 is updated in amendment 3 to state that LOE hours can be rolled into the option year.

	53 Q


	USA has been requested to provide SB performance data for IMOC related content on SPOC for NASA evaluation of appropriate SB goal for IMOC. USA data (has been provided/is provided herewith?) in support of that request.  

	53 A
	Contract Clause H.6 has been updated to reflect small business goals.

	54 Q
	In which volume should we include our IDIQ rates? 

	54 A
	Volume IIA

	55 Q
	Does NASA want a Prime Cost Summary Template for Completion Form similar to the LOE Prime Cost Summary Template? 

	55 A
	No.  This information will be provided in the Form A.  See answer to question 3 above.

	56 Q
	Does NASA want a Member/Major Subcontractor Cost Summary Template for Completion Form similar to the LOE Member/Major Subcontract Cost Summary Template? 

	56 A
	No.  However, the detail costs for each subcontractor included in Completion Form “MSCST” will be provided to the DCAA Auditors for their review.

	57 Q
	Do templates need to be at the lowest level SOW or just at the Summary Level? 

	57 A
	Summary Level for the templates, but we anticipate getting the BOE at the SOW level. 

	58 Q
	Is there an expectation that the templates will be interactive, similar to the EPM?  

	58 A
	Yes

	59 Q
	The existence of a NASA approved IT Plan has afforded USA the ability to only ask once a year for govt. approval to buy what’s in the plan, which eliminates the need to include NASA approval in the middle of each procurement (i.e. extended elapsed time to purchase IT related items).  Is there a mechanism to retain the once a year approval cycle of direct IT in order to preclude the procurement delays?

	59 A
	The once a year IT plan and approval process is a JSC process that will continue.  It is not tied to contracting.


